United Nations Nations Unies UNRESTRICTED

ECONOMIC CONSEIL X%/
AND ECONOMIQUE  meiisn
SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL ORIGINAL: FRENCEH

AD HOC COMMITTEE CN GENOCIDE
SUMMARY RECCRD OF THE THIRTEENTH MEETING

Leke Success, New Yerk
Tuesdey, 20 April 1948, at 2 p.m.

Chalrman: My, MAKTCS _ United States of America
Vice~Crhalrman: Mr. MOROZOV Union of Soviet Socialist
: Republlcs
Raprorteur: Mr., AZKOUL Lebanon
Members : Mr, LIN MOUSHENG China

Me. ORDONNEAU Irence

Mr, RUDZINSKI Poland

M1, PEREZ-FEROZO Venezuels
Secretariat! Mr. SCHWELB Deputy Director of the

Divieion of Humen Rights

Mr. GIRAUD Secretary of the Committes

NOTE: Any corrections of this record should be submitted in
writing, in elther of the working lengueges (English or French), and
within twenty-four hours, to Mr. B, Delavenay, Director, Officlal
Records Divielon, Room CC-119, Leks Success. Corrections sghkovld be
accompanied by or incorporated in a letter, on headed notepaper, bearing
the appropriste symbol number and enclopsd in an envelope marked "Urgent'.
Corrsctions can be dsalt with mors gpsedily Dby the mervices concerned
1f delegations will be govd emough also to incorporate them in a mimeo-
greyhed copy of the record. '




E/AC.25/8R.13 |
Fage 2 j

PREPARATION OF A DRAFT CONVENTICN ON GINCCIDE

CONTINUATION OF THE DISCUSSION.

Draft proposed by the delsgation of China {dacumant E/LC.2%/y)

The CHAIRMAN suggested that the text of the first parsgrsph
of Article T of the Chinese drafb should be amsndad to re-introduce a

-

reference to politicel groups. The smended taxt would resd ao.follows:
"In this Conventlon, genocide meuns any of the Dollowing
deliberate actes directed against g natlunal, racisl, religlous

or political group on grounds of naticnal or recicl origin or

religious or political heliafl."

. Mr. IEREZ-PEROZO (Venezusla) wea opposed to sy reference to
~political genoolds in the draft convsntion, not for resacns of prinziple,

o

-But for prectlical reasone. The Venszuzlan delegation had slready indi-
cated thau it wag particularly interested in the gquosticn of rolitical
genocids, sopeclally from the point of view of justice, On the other
hend, it considered that the matter was a0 combtroversiel thet many
countries might not sign the proposed convention if it included o re-

ferencs to political gsnocide. ’

Mr, AZKOUL (Lebanon) (Repporteur) peinted out thet a volitical
group had certaln characteristics which differantisted it frem e national,
racial or religious group. The political group waz not permensnt; 1t was
baszed on a bady of theoretical concepts wherems sentiment or traiition
bbund tha members of a neticnal, racial op faligious group, There was
‘therefors nothing to correspond 4o the racial hatfa& or religioua fana-
tlcism which usuvally motivated acts of ganocide di“n ted againet the

‘otherfgroups.
Within the nation, the activities of a political group were linked

/to a ocertain



E/AC .25/8R.13

Fage 3 '
to a certain extent with the astivities of the State, ard it was
aifficult to draw the line of demarcatiocn between them.

Furthermors, he put forward scme agreements in favour of a re-
ference to politlcal genccide in the drafi convention. It was the
political greap that was most often attacked, most exposed to gené-
clds. Finally, it might be dangerous for the convention nﬁt to con-
demn the persecution of a group for politicel reawons while providing

for the punishment of all otker forms of genocide.

Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) proposed a slight alteraticn in
the text suggested by the representative of the United States, whereby
the end of the gentence would reed as follows: . '...religious belief

or political opinion."

Mr. ORDONNEAU (Frence) approved the suggestion of the re-

pregentative of China.

The CHATRMAN, as the rsypresentative of the United States,

agresd to thet amendment.

Mr, MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist.Republics)‘reminded
the Cémmitteu that &t previous meetings he had objected to including
a reference to political groups in the definition of genoclde. From.
a selentific point of vi;w, and atymologicéllj, "genoclde" meanﬁ :
essentially persecuti~n of a racial, naticnal or religlous group.

The veprasentativea of Venezuele and Lebanon had raiged very
rartinent objeot*ons to the inuluaion of & refsrence to political

genocide in the convention, The delegaticn of the USSR would thorefora

vote against the ﬁext Y obosed by bhe Unito& States

Mr. RUDZINSKI (Poland) said that he $00 would vote against
/ths texﬁ



E/AC.25/8R.13
Page 4

the text proposed by the United States for the reascns he lad atated in

the courze of the discusslon,

By a_vote of 4 to 3, the Committee adopted the firet veragraph of
Article I of the Chinege dref+t, arsnded as follows:

"Tn this Conventicn, gsnoclde means any of the following
deliberate acte directed against a nmational, raciel, religious
or polltical group, on grounds of national -~ racial origin,

‘roliglous belisf or political opinion."

Thé cﬁgmaw, as the representative of the United States of
Aﬁérica,}suggeetad the following alteration of item 1 of Articls I of
 the Chinese draft:

. "K1lling of members of the group with ths intention of

desgtroying ite physical existence."
Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) agreed to this alteration.

Mr. ORDONNEAU (Frence) wanted provieion zede in item 1 for
ény attack on the lives of membera of the group, eny rosltive act of
agu resslon directed againet tba humen. person, hecause actm of violence

causing death could not be xwoperly callad murday or aasaasiﬁaticn.

To meet Mr. Ordonneau's point of Tlew, the CHATRMAN suggested
the follwwing wording. "Acte causing the dsath of members of the

group. ..

M, MCROZOV (Union of Soviet Soclalist Ranublics) preferred
the or iginel wordirg of lten 1 ag it appearsd in the Ghineaa draft-

”Dastroying tetally or partially the thysical exlstence of

euch group "

' Me. PEREZ-PEROZO (Venezuels) supported in principle the

/alteration



E/AC.25/SR.13
Page 5
alteration sugpested by the United Statss, but proposed that it e
amended to resad:
"Tegbroying such group woitally or partlially by mess wassacrs

or individual exscuticns.”

M. AZKOUT. (Lehancn) suggested sn sddition to the first
paregraph of Article I f the Chineso drvaft, which hed already been
gdopted, as follcwe:
v, ,.ecte whish ers intendsd to:
"1, Destrry directly, totally or partlally, the rhysical
exlgtence of a group;
"2, Degtroy the grcup indirsctly, totally or partiallj:
(a) By stopping or preventing ite reproduction;
"(®) By subjecting it to conditions likely to destroy
1tg physical existence." |
At a later moment, he wuld propose a new wording of item 3, which

concerned cultural genocide.

Mr, ORDCNNEAU (France) considered the wording suggested Dy
Lebsnon an improvemsr in the text, although ahy enuneration was in-

evitably restrictive.

Mr. PEREZ-TEROZO (Venezuela) criticized the use of the ex-
presslon "physical axistence" because it sesmed to lesd to‘confusion- |
by introduclng a metophysical éondapt. He favoured the wording: "eilling
members of the group'. Moreover, he thought thet the final text ahoﬁid
be similer to thet proposed by the Secreteriet, which listed the verieug
forms of violence 1ikaly 0 threaten‘thé oxistence of members of the
~ greup. However, that list wés incomplete and other cesaed could be men- -

~ tlored, such aé peeudo~blological sxperiments performed upon in@ividuala

/for no real



E/AC.25/SR.13

Page 6

for no real scientific rurrose; sterilizeticn; certain attecks on perscnel
liberty which would result in destructicn of the group, such as exile,
belng deprived of msans of exigtsncs or sheltsr, belng forbiddsn to work,

etey..

Mr., MOFOZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republice) again cri-
tlcized the wording suggested by the rerregsntative of the United States

and relterated hig preferencs for the Chinsse dreft of item 1.

Mr. RUDZINSKI (Polend) thought that the ghress “dsstroying
'*to’oa‘lly or partially" might be confuming end csksé whelher the des-

truction of only half the group would be characterized =ag ganocids.,

‘The CHATRMAN eaid thet the intention wes the importent fector
and that the destruction of a fraction of the groun would constitute

genocide provided that the intention was to destrsy the group totelly.

M-, PEREZ-DPEROZO (Venezuela) thought that the sxyression:

"group messacres or individuel exscutions" would mest the objactions

which had juet besn raised.

In reply to a remark by the CEATRMAN, whe rointed out thetb
the repregentative of Chine had withdrawn his original text, 2. MORCGZOV
(Unicn of Soviet Soclalist Republics) sald that he considered himself
rerfectly Juatified in reaqu@sting that the Ccmmitte*:—) roturn to the ¢rl-
‘ginal Chine,?,? ireft of item 1. He thought that that text covered ell
the srecific cases which had been mentioned snd its texms were peneral

‘enough to obviate the digadvantage of whaet would still be an incomplste

list. :

Mr. RUDZINSKI (Polend) questioned the phrase "with the in~
~ tention of destroying the physical existence of ths group in the text

/suggested



B/AC.25/8R.13

Page T
suggested by the United States, sinco the introductory peragraph of
Article I which had been adopted indiceted that the crime of genocids,

wag lntentional by snumersting the wotives,

Mr. ORDCNNEAU (France) observed that the whole difficulty
at that point in the discussion arose from the wording of the intro-
ductory raragraph, since part of its content had to be repeated in
the text of the three ltems which followed. The element cf intention |
~should te stated clearly in that first raragraph.
He therefore suggested the following alteration of the intro-
ductory raragraph of Article I:

",..any of the following deliberate acts committed with the

intention of destroying..."

The CHATRMAN accepted the wording suggested by the represen-

tative of France.

. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Regpublice) eleo fa~“
voured the amended text of the introductory peragrarh suggsaﬁed by,Mﬁ.
Ordonneau, but repeated thal he preferred the original draft Qf'itemvl,
which coversd all forms of destruotion, to the United States draft, which

spplied oniy ‘o muxder.

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon), speaking as the Rapporteur, pointed out
that 1t was difficult to alber the firet paragraph so long as no position

had been teken on item 3 of the Chinese dreft which referred ‘o cultural

genocide .

it

. DEREZ~PEROZO (Venezusla) favoured the text of the intro~.'
ductory peragraph with the smendment suggested by the representative of =  \’5

Frence,

/By _&_vote



E/AC .25/SR .13
Page -8

By a vute of four to nope, with three ebstentions, the Commitiee

adopted the introductory raragrayh of Article 1 sr omended by the re-
ressntative of Srence to rsad sg follows!:

"In this Convsnticn, genoclde mesns apy of the following
deliberste acte commitbed with the Intsntion of dsatroying @
[l

netional, racial, veligious or politlcal group, ok grounds of

naticnal or raclal origin, rellgious belief or politienl opinion.”

The CHAIRMAN thought thet it would be logicel, since the
 destructicn of the group was mentioned in the firvet paragraph, to adopt
the wording he had suggested for item L:

"¥11ling of members of the group;"
P =

The above bext of item 1 was adorbed by n vobe of Pive to two.




E/AC.25/SR.13
Page 9

The CILIRMK opened the discusalon on item 2 of Artlcle I
of the Droft Artlelos progoasd by the dedsgation of Chlua, realding os
follows:

"SubJeebing such group o such conditions or messures ae
will ceume the destruction, 1o whols or in part, of the physical
oxistonce ~f ouech Jxoup"

My, MOROZOV {Upi:n of Scviet Scecialist Republics) proposed
thet the © rpitice ol pb, in pleec ol the above text, that of the |
USSR prop.cnl, reedlog: |

"Tho yreneditoted dnflictiom oo these groupe of such
comditi.ne of Life which will bo elmed et destroying totally or
perticlly tholr physicel oxistencc”

Ho sided that the above texb hed the advantege of being clearern
thro thet propsoed by the Chinese delegation, end of corrosponding
more olomely to the priveiyles oo which the draft cenvention should
he beped. The Cornmittoc's tosk wes to provido for all possiblo
Porng of goncells 1o the wording of 1toms 1 and 2.

My, OEDONNLAU (Francc) roforred o the rescrvations ha‘”
hed mede in roopoot of ltem L, end pointod wut thet provisiun should

twa
Yo nado for/difforont nspests of gonosidoe, On one hend, thero was
tho cnge of oot Mrected ageinst the surporal integrity of the
mophors of nogeoup; on the cthor, the subJection of membors of a
grouy b cortndn sendldions of life. Both item 1, which had Jjust
boon edonted by the Cimmittes, and tho toxt of the USSR dreft pro-
womel Tellod oo spoclfy those twe cases. Ltenm 2 might therefore
Vo Aprftod s followe:

"ipy cets directed of mipst the corpornl integrity Jf fhe‘

membors f o opoup” .
/Item 1



E/AC,25/SR.13
Papgs 10

Ttem 1 cuvered the murder of mombors of & group. Paragraph 1
of Article I did not provide for cctions such as mutilation, or for
eny of the forms of violeuce which might load To the déath of members
cf a group. It was therefcre nocessary to oxpross that concopt
clearly, He thought that thet point should form the subject of a
separatc peragreph. The USSR and Chincsc drafte could te ingeorted
in tho item thot followed,

Thoe CHAIEMAN, asg the reprosentative of the United Stotes
of Amerlica, submitted the fullowing text propored by him:
"Subjecting wembers of a group o such physical conditions
cr measures as will cause.their death or prevent the procreation of
the grou@”.
| He thought thet by introducing the word "death" the text had
the advantege of including»all acfions loading to death. The text
' propesed by USSR did not seem te him to be sufficisntly direct.

He pointed sut that hidg text was in fact a modificeation of
the amendment to fhe Chinese delegation's text o8 proposed by‘the
USSR delegetion, He sugpested that the members of the Caﬁmittee
should vote flrst on the toxt pr@poﬂed by him, and then vote in
dﬁe order wn the proposals submitted by thé USSR and Thinesz dele-
@étiuns. |

‘Mr. PERBZ-PEROZO (Venszuela) opposed ths adoption of
too general a foymula, Ee thwughﬁ that the Committes should not
hesitnte to give o detailed list of obvious cases, such a8 measures
which might be teken to deprive,a roup Qf 1%s meang bf’axistence.
~ The texts proposed up to that time did noﬁ provide for all such
' possibilitiea. It should not be fnrgutton.that'th@ texts wonld,
e subject to lagdl 1mterpretution;

Mr. ORDONNFATT



B/AC.25/5R.13
Page 11

M, ORDONNDAU (Frence) pointed cut that item 1 covercd :
tho murder of mombors of a group. Item 2 should cover all cctions
directoed ogainst the corporal integrity of members of a group. Item
3 therefore should cover the cunditioms cf life inflicted on mewbers '
of o group. On thot lost point the Committee had the cholce between~'
the texts submitted by the delegations of Chine, the USSR and tho
United States of Americea.

In reply tu a remerk by Mr, AZKCUL (Lébauon), WO p§inted
cut that the list did not cuver ects directed agﬁinst procreation of
a group ond that a separate item should be devoted to that point, |
My, ORDONNEAU stcted that acticns such as castration, compulsory
obortion, segrogation of the sexes or the enfeeblement of members of
a group came under the ltem dealing with conditions of Llife. Hé saw‘
no need to enumerate thew, since all enumération wos necéssariiy‘
regtrictive. |

The CHAIEMAN felt that an entirely new element had been
introduced into the discussion, namely, the enfeeblemeﬁt of mémbebs
of a group., He thought that the drafi convention should éovef the
violent destruction of groﬁps. If the new concept were'adopted, the
delegation of the United Btates of Ameriéa would vote for the USSR
toxt, from which 1t differed only on some points of wofding.- _

M, OXDONNEAU (Framoe) pointed out that tho sdoption of
the USSR delegation's text would deprive Western legal systems of -

certaln indisponsable guarantess.

After discussion. the Committee decided that the ‘

text propossd by tho representative of‘Franc@ would become‘item,g‘gf—v"f

Article I.

The CEATRMAN, after observing that the text proporsd by the

French delegation had the”mefitlof‘Olarifyiﬁﬂ'ﬂ point, ¢alled for o ' . =

‘,vote on that‘proposal.‘ - : |  , - "   ”,/3y fiV9 ffi'




E/AC.25/5R.13
Pege 12

By five votes to oun, with one absbeoution, the

Cornmittes adopted item 2 a8 proposed by the French delepation,

roading ag follows:

"iny ot dirvectod against the corporal integrity of
ﬁémbors-of'tho group' .

Mp. MCROZOV (Uniun of Scviet Socialist Republics)
explained that he hdd voted agninst the Fronch proposal not because
hé rejocted 1ts principle, but becouse he preferred his own toext.

- To sottie o question cof prccedufe, the CHAIRMAN osked the
Cemmittee to decide on the order in which members wighed to exsming
tbe‘proposals of the USSR and the United States of America, The
téit fiﬁally‘adupte& would form & new item 3 in Article I. The two
’prupgsqls wére o8 follows:

USSR propesal: "The premeditated inflictiun on those groups of
such canditioﬁsyqf life vhich will be aimed at destroying totally
or partislly their physical existence",

United States proposal: "Subjecting wembers of a group %o such
conditiong or measures as will cause‘their deaths or ﬁrevent the
procrention of the Qruup”f

By four voteg, with threc abstentions, the Committee

decided to oxamine the USSR text first.

A o result of remarks madb by the representatives of
Poland apd China, Mr. MOROZOV (Unicn of Suviot Socialist Republics)
agrecd to withdraw the word "praveditated" from his text and to
_inéert the words "mecsures Qf“ befcre tﬁe‘wcrdS'”cmnditicna of Life'.
Mr, ORDONNEAU (France) pointed out that therc was o
: fuﬁdamaﬂtal-differqpca botween the text of the USSR del@gnﬁioﬂ,

'

: /which covered



E/AC.25/8R.13
Pege 13

which covorst the deubravticn of o oroup, sod the Tultsd Slotes
cologntionts toxt, which scuvered the destruetlon of the sndividusds
constioubing ~ oroup.

.

Ho rddod thet oceh delegation should roscrve the right to
cuploy the cppropricte torms used in tho légal lopguage of 1t8 own
country in tho trenslotion of the fincl toxts that would be a&opbgd.

Mp, PEREZ-PEACZ0 (Verezuole) stated thet ne preferred the
Loxb ﬁrapcsod by tho Ubitud Stetes of hmoricn, which protected the
membors of o group, tu thot of the USSR which in sffect prdtectéd
only the growp us such.

My, UDZINSET (Polond) rerarked thot it wos posaible to
destroy o group wilthout destroyling 1t8 mewbors, For instdnca,-it
wng sufficlont to onforce roosures such as the prolonged segfogation
of sexos.

My, MOROZOV (Upion of Soviot Sociolist Republics), in reply
to tho yremnrks podo Ly the ropresontetive of China and vy the Ghaifmaﬁ,
explaincd that his toxb ccptoined o cloar condernaticn of meosures |
rosulting in the portinl destructlon of & group. A 1anl text could
not provide for QVOiy eventunlity, It would be for the tribunal to
deeido whother, for instanco, wn isélutca act of murdexr wos aimed:
ot tho physicol destructlon of « group, ginco thero were cases in
vhich individucl nuriors mighﬁ load to the disappocrance of o group.

Mp., PLSEZ-ITR0ZO (Venozuole) sutmittod an amonduent to the
toxt wf tho now iten 3 o8 pfopuﬁchby tho USSR delogetion.  The
epondont cond o oaoellowe:

"Tnilicting on the mombers of the group Buch wLeasures or
conditions of life which would be uimo&‘to couse their deaths."

/By four 



E/AC.25/5R.13
Page 14

By four votes to ene, with three obetentions, tho

Cormittee adopted the text ef the new 1tam 3 ag propoged by the delepuabion

off Venezuela,

Mr, AZKQUL (Lebancn) (Bapporteur) endorsed the remsrk -7 the

K

representative of Poland that no provision had yet been mude to condemn
meagures gimed at westricting bLirths within the grcup, and propesed to the
Ccmmittee the addition of dn item 4 to Article I, which would read ne follows
in the French text:
"Tout scte cu mesure destind & limiter la nutalité un sein
iﬁ groupe“,
After o discussion on the English trunslation of the above text,
_the CHATRMAN asked the Ccmmittes to decide first on the principle of a
‘sépdréﬁe paragraph dealing with that point.

By four votes, with three abstenticns, the Committes

decided to accept the principle of o separate poritarovl,

By four votes, with three cbstenticns, the Ccumlttos

adopted the text of item b of Article T propozed by the Lebunsoe repre-

sentative.
The Ccmmittee approved the follewing wording of the English text of
iﬁem by oo
"Any act or measure calculated tio prevent births within the

group. "

The meeting rose at 6:20 p;m.



